FILED

June 24, 2024
1:18PM

U.S. EPA REGION 7
HEARING CLERK

CLEAN AIR ACT STATIONARY SOURCE
EXPEDITED SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

DOCKET NO. CAA-07-2024-0043 Respondent:  US Paint Corporation
: 831 S 21° Street
St. Louis, Missouri

1. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and US Paint Corporation enter into this
Clean Air Act Stationary Source Expedited Settlement Agreément (Agreement) to settle the
civil violations set forth in the enclosed Clean Air Act Stationary Source Inspection Findings,
Alleged Violations, and Proposed Penalty Form (the Form), pursuant to Section 113 of the
Clean Air Act (CAA), 42 U.S.C. § 7413, and 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b,) for a penalty of $7,500
(Assessed Penalty).

2. Respondent admits to being subject to the CAA and its associated regulations and that EPA
has jurisdiction over Respondent and Respondent’s conduct described in Table 2 of the Form.

3. Respondent neither admits nor denies the violation(s) specified in the Form and waives any
objections Respondent may have to EPA’s jurisdiction.

4. Respondent certifies that it completed the required corrective action(s) set forth in Table 3 of
the Form.

5. Respondent acknowledges that there are significant penalties for submitting false information
to the United States Government, including the possibility of a fine or imprisonment for
knowing violations pursuant to section 113(c)(2) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(c)}2), and 18
U.S.C. §§ 1001 and 1341.

6. Respondent agrees to pay the Assessed Penalty and agrees to submit proof of payment to
EPA within 30 calendar days of receipt of a copy of the ratified Agreement and Final Order.

7. The Assessed Penalty is based upon EPA’s consideration of the factors provided in CAA
Section 113(e), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(e), and the EPA’s Clean Air Act Stationary Source Civil
Penalty Policy dated October 25, 19911,

8. The payment made by Respondent pursuant to this Agreement is a penalty within the F _
meaning of Section 162(f) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 USC § 162(1), and, therefore,
Respondent shall not claim the payment as a tax-deductible expenditure for purposes of
federal, state, or local law. '

9. If Respondent fails to pay the Assessed Penalty in full within 30 calendar days of receipt of a
copy of the ratified Agreement and Final Order, the entire unpaid balance of the Assessed

! See “Amendments to the EPA’s Civil Penalty Policy to Account for Inflation (effective January 15, 2022) and
Transmittal of the 2022 Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule” January 12, 2022 memorandum. See
also “Civil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule” January 6, 2023 memorandum.
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Penalty and accrued interest shall become immediately due and owing. Interest shall be at
rates established pursuant to 26 U.S.C. § 6621(a)(2) from the date of the Final Order. 42
U.S.C. § 7413(d)(5).

If Respondent fails to timely pay the Assessed Penalty, Respondent may be subject to a civil
action pursuant to Section 113(d)(5) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)5) to collect the
Assessed Penalty. In any collection action, the validity, amount, and appropriateness of the
Assessed Penalty shall not be subject to review.

By its first signature below, EPA confirms the alleged violation(s) set forth in Table 2 in the
Form. Upon signing and returning this Agreement to EPA, Respondent consents to the terms
of this Agreement without further notice.

Respondent acknowledges that this Agreement is binding on the parties signing below and
becomes effective on the date of filing with the Hearing Clerk, after ratification of the
Agreement and Final Order by the Regional Judicial Officer.

This Agreement, upon approval and incorporation in the Final Order, concludes this action
pursuant to Sections 22.13(b), and 22.18(b)(2), and (3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice
Governing the Administrative Assessment of Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or
Suspension of Permits, 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b), and 22.18(b)(2), and (3).

This Agreement and Final Order is a complete and full resolution of Respondent’s liability
for federal civil penalties for the violation(s) alleged in this Agreement.

The EPA reserves the right to commence action against any person, including Respondent, in
response to any condition which the EPA determines may present an imminent and
substantial endangerment to the public health, public welfare, or the environment.

Nothing in this Agreement and Final Order should be construed to limit the authority of the
United States to pursue criminal sanctions.

This settlement is subject to all limitations on the scope of resolution and the reservation of
rights set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(c).

EPA reserves any rights and remedies available to it under the CAA, the regulations
promulgated thereunder, and any other federal laws or regulations for which EPA has
jurisdiction, to enforce the provisions of this ESA and accompanying Final Order following
its filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

Nothing in this Agreement relieves Respondent’s obligation to comply with all applicable
provisions of the CAA, 42 U.S.C § 7401 et. seq., and the regulations promulgated
thereunder.



20. Upon the EPA’s final approval of the ESA, Respondent expressly waives its right to contest
the allegations. Moreover, in entering into this Agreement, Respondent agrees to bear its own
costs and attorney’s fees related to this Agreement.

21. Respondent consents to electronic service of the filed Expedited Settlement Agreement and
Final Order to the following email address: Ischubert@uspaint.com. Respondent understands
that the Expedited Settlement Agreement and Final Order will become publicly available
upon filing.

ACCEPT THE PROPOSED PENALTY
I/'we (Respondent) consent to the proposed penalty.

DECLINE THE PROPOSED PENALTY
o I/we (Respondent) decline the proposed penalty. If you choose to decline this proposed
penalty, you may be subject to formal enforcement action and, in that event, will have an
opportunity to a hearing related to any subsequent penalty assessment.

COST OF COMPLIANCE :
Respondent certifies that it has expended $ O to correct the alleged violations and to
come into compliance.

APPROVED BY EPA:
Digitally signed by WENDY

LUBBE
WENDY LUBB Date: 2024.06.05 06:36:32
Signature: -05'00" Date:
David Cozad

Director
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division

APPROVED BY RESPONDENT:

Signature: ﬁm g M}b\j Date: 5 - a g“' Q\U
Name and Title (print): Lau\[v\ S C/‘/\Ulb Z,r* ) zh l};ﬂ)h W\'@M&tl W\ﬁ hQS@(




FINAL ORDER

Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b) of the EPA’s Consolidated Rules of Practice and Section 113 of
the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413, and having relied upon the representations of the parties set
forth in the Expedited Settlement Agreement, I have determined that the penalty assessed herein
is based on a consideration of the EPA’s Clean Air Act Stationary Source Civil Penalty Policy
dated October 25, 1991 and the Expedited Settlement Agreement Pilot Program for the Clean Air
Act Stationary Source Enforcement Program, and is consistent with the penalty assessment
criteria set forth in in CAA Section 113(e), 42 U.S8.C. § 7413(e).

THEREFORE, the foregoing Expedited Scttlement Agreement is hereby approved and
incorporated by reference into the Final Order. Respondent is ORDERED, as set forth above, to
pay the civil penalty.

Digitally signed by CRYSTAL
CRYSTAL sohnson )

Date: 2024.06.24 10:49:21
JOHNSON =

Karina Borromeo

Regional Judicial Officer

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Region 7

Signature Date:




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
(For EPA use only.)

I certify that that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Expedited Settlement
Agreement and Final Order in the matter of US Paint Corporation, EPA Docket No. CAA-07-
2024-0043, was sent this day in the following manner to the addressees:

Copy via Email to Complainant:

Francesca Centracchio
Office of Regional Counsel
Centracchio. Francesca@epa.gov

Luke Rodriguez
Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Division
Rodriguez. Luke(@epa.gov

Milady Peters
Office of Regional Counsel
Peters. Milady@epa.gov

Copy via Email to Respondent:

Laura Schubert
Environmental Manager
US Paint Corporation
LSchuberti@uspaint.com

Dated this day of ,

Digitally signed by Gonzales, Amy

Gonzal €es, A MY Date: 2024.06.25 08:3822 0500
Signed




CLEAN AIR ACT STATIONARY SOURCE
INSPECTION FINDINGS, ALLEGED VIOLATIONS AND PROPOSED PENALTY

FORM

. Table 1 - Inspection Infpr’_l'm.l'tio.n

Inspection Date(s): Docket Number:

September 13 and 14, 2023 CIA[A-|0|7]-12(0/2|4]|-]0(0 [4]3
Respondent Address: Facility Name(s):

831 S 21* Street US Paint Corporation

City: Inspector(s) Name(s):

St. Louis Luke Rodriguez

State: Zip Code: EPA Delegated Official:

MO 63103 David Cozad, ECAD

Respondent Name:

EPA Attorney Contact(s):

Andrew Williams

Sara Hertz Wu, ORC

. Table- Violations

The EPA obtained evidence through an on-site inspection that from January 1, 2021 to August 30, 2023, US
Paint Corporation (Respondent) failed to keep appropriate records. The EPA alleges that Respondent has
committed a total of 6 months of violations of the CAA. These violations are described in the following table.

' Regulatory
Violation Description Cltatloq or Time Period Document
Permit
Condition
Recordkeeping required for inspections under § 63.11602(a)(2) February 1, Dust Collector PM
§ 63.11602(a)(2)(i1)(A), § 63.11602(a)2)(ii)(B) (i)(A), 2023 to Descriptions
and § 63.11602(b) are required to have the § 63.11602(a)(2) August 30,
following information which was not available: (i}B) and 2023, (Attachment E to the
the place and time of the activity, the technique § 63.11602(b) Inspection Report)
or method used, the operating conditions during
the activity, or the results of the inspection.
Recordkeeping required for Method 22 Tests do | OP102022-002 - February 1, Visible Emissions
not have required information. The record Permit 2023 to Determination
provided does not have the place and time of the | Condition 011, August 30, records.
activity. The place of the observation, the stop Appendix A-7 to 2023.
time for the test and other information required Part 60. (Attachment F to the
by Method 22 are not present in the record. inspection Report)




Table 3 Penaty and Reguived Corretive Action

Penalty  |$7.500

Required In addition to paying the monetary penalty, Respondent must correct recordkeeping

Corrective deficiencies. Within 30 days, provide to the EPA new recordkeeping forms or

Action evidence of a new recordkeeping system which have the required information as
noted above and begin using the new forms or recordkeeping system.




	Dated this: 
	day of: 
		2024-06-05T06:36:32-0500
	WENDY LUBBE


		2024-06-24T10:49:21-0500
	CRYSTAL JOHNSON


		2024-06-25T08:38:22-0500
	Gonzales, Amy




